# ICP DAS PMC Data Server Quick Start Guide

[Version 2.3.0]



## Warning

ICP DAS Inc., LTD. assumes no liability for damages consequent to the use of this product. ICP DAS Inc., LTD. reserves the right to change this manual at any time without notice. The information furnished by ICP DAS Inc. is believed to be accurate and reliable. However, no responsibility is assumed by ICP DAS Inc., LTD. for its use, or for any infringements of patents or other rights of third parties resulting from its use.

## **Copyright and Trademark Information**

© Copyright 2018 by ICP DAS Inc., LTD. All rights reserved worldwide.

## **Trademark of Other Companies**

The names used for identification only maybe registered trademarks of their respective companies.

### License

The user can use, modify and backup this software on a single machine. The user may not reproduce, transfer or distribute this software, or any copy, in whole or in part.

## **Table of Contents**

1	Overview				
2	Before Installation				
3	Software Installation				
4	User Interface Introduction				
5	System Operating Procedure			7	
	5.1	Proje	ct Setting	7	
		5.1.1	Create New Project	7	
		5.1.2	Save Project	8	
		5.1.3	Open(Import) Project	8	
		5.1.4	Auto Execute Last Project	8	
	5.2	Syste	m Setting	9	
	5.3	FTP \$	Server Settings	9	
	5.4	Alarm	n Settings	11	
		5.4.1	Power Meter Alarm Setting	15	
		5.4.2	PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting	16	
	5.5	Data	Table Editing and Binding	17	
		5.5.1	Data Table Editing	18	
		5.5.2	Data Table Binding	19	
	5.6	Datab	base Settings and Conversion	21	
		5.6.1	Create Database Connection Setting	21	
		5.6.2	Save Database Connection Setting	21	
		5.6.3	Modify and Delete Database Connection Setting	22	
		5.6.4	Database Conversion	22	
	5.7	PMC/	PMD Connection State	25	

## 1 Overview

The PMC Data Server is a Database utility developed by ICP DAS. It is designed for connections to the ICP DAS PMC/PMD concentrators to read the power data measured by the power meters, and import the power data into the Database system for further statistics and analysis, so that enables a complete power management solution.

The ICP DAS PMMS (Power Monitoring and Management Solution) consists of three parts: ICP DAS PMC Data Server, ICP DAS PMC/PMD concentrator and ICP DAS power meter. The PMC is used for connections to ICP DAS PM-2133/PM-3x33(-MTCP)/PM-311x(-MTCP)/PM-4324(-MTCP) power meters to read power data of the devices measured by the power meters by RS-485 (or Ethernet) interface, and save these power data to the PMC/PMD. When PMC Data Server is connected to these PMC/PMD concentrators by Ethernet, the PMC/PMD concentrators will automatically send the power data files at pre-defined scheduled time to the PMC Data Server through the FTP protocol, then PMC Data Server will receive these power data logger files and import the content of these files into the Database system for further operations.

By using PMC Data Server to build a power management system, during the whole process of system development, no programming is required; by a few settings of the connection parameters for Database; the user could quickly convert the power data of the devices into Database system. The ICP DAS PMC Data Server, PMC/PMD concentrator and Power Meters is an easy-to-use and easy-to-build solution for power management that makes more efficient energy usage.



The system architecture of ICP DAS PMMS solution is as below.

PMC Data Server Features:

- Connect to PMC/PMD concentrators through Ethernet interface to receive the power data logger files (in CSV format) that are sent by PMC/PMD concentrators.
- Support Database import function to import the content of CSV file to the MS SQL, MS Access, MySQL(MariaDB) or Oracle Database system.

Currently the PMC Data Server support ICP DAS PMC/PMD concentrator. This document is intended to give a full-range instruction of PMC Data Server. For detailed operations and setting of PMC/PMD concentrator, please refer to the user manual of PMC/PMD concentrator.

## 2 Before Installation

PMC Data Server can be installed on Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows 7, Windows 8 and Windows 10. Before the installation of PMC Data Server, please confirm the Microsoft .NET Framework 4.5.2 (or later version) has been installed on the target computer.

If the target computer does not install the framework package, please visit the link as below to download the file directly from Microsoft and install it.

Download Microsoft .Net Framework Version 4.5.2: <u>https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/download/details.aspx?id=42642</u>

#### **3** Software Installation

Please contact ICP DAS service to obtain the latest version of PMC Data Server installation file (PMC Data Server\_v2.x.x\_Setup.msi). Double click on the installation file to start the installation, click [Next] to continue.



On **[**Select Installation Folder **]** window, input path or browse through file dialog box to select the destination folder, and then click **[**Next **]** to continue.



Click [Next] to start the installation.

<u>i</u>	PMC Data Server	- 🗆 🗙
Confirm Installation		
The installer is ready to install PMC Click "Next" to start the installation	Data Server on your computer.	
	-	
	Cancel < Bac	k Next≻

When the installation process is completed, click [Close] to finish the installing process.

🛃 PMC Data Server	_ I ×
Installation Complete	
PMC Data Server has been successfully installed.	
Click "Close" to exit.	
Please use Windows Update to check for any critical updates to the .NET Framew	ork.
Cancel < Back	Close

After the installation is completed, user will find PMC Data Server shortcut (icon) on the desktop and in the program menu:  $[Start] \rightarrow [All Programs] \rightarrow [ICPDAS]$ 

 $\rightarrow$  [PMC Data Server]. The icon is shown as  $\square$ .

· 🤍 ·	Vy Williuuws Meula Playei	
	🖬 ICPDAS 🛛 🕨	📅 PMC Data Server 🔸 🕞 PMC Data Server
All Programs 🕨	🖄 Windows Messenger	📄 Uninstall PMC Data Server
	🖉 Log Off 🛛 🗿 Turn Off Corr	puter
赶 Start		

## 4 User Interface Introduction

PMC Data Server main window contains the following areas:

- i. System Function Area : It contains the menu bar for user to select the function.
- ii. Function Operation Area :
  - Project Management : User can define the content of the data table and the related power meters which will be using to import the power data into the Database system. User also can review the setting here.
  - PMC/PMD Connection State : The PMC/PMD connection state will be shown in this page.
- iii. **Database Operation Area**: It provides the parameter setting for both the Database connection and Database importing functions.
- iv. System Message Area : Display the system messages during the function execution.

Project Systen	n					
Project Manage	PMC Connection State	- Database Connect	ion Setting			
		Database type:	None ~		Database name:	
		Login name:			Login password:	
		IP:				Use localhost
		Port number:			Test Connection	Save Setting
		Connection List				
		Convert Database				
		Convert Database Perform auto con	version Perform manual	conversion		
		Convert Database Perform auto con Database	version Perform manual	conversion		~
		Convert Database Perform auto con Database Start date	version Perform manual e: : 2019年 2月21日	conversion		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		Convert Database Perform auto con Database Start date Table	version Perform manual e: : 2019年 2月21日 e:	conversion		~ 
		Convert Database Perform auto con Database Start date Table	version Perform manual e: 2019年 2月21日 e:	conversion		
		Convert Database Perform auto con Database Start date Table	version Perform manual e: : 2019年 2月21日 ::	conversion		~ ↓ Start

## 5 System Operating Procedure

PMC Data Server is connected to ICP DAS PMC/PMD concentrators via Ethernet interface. The historical power data logger files generated by PMC/PMD concentrators will be automatically sent back to PMC Data Server via FTP protocol. After the PMC Data Server receives the files, the power data files will be processed and then the power data of the devices measured by power meters can be imported into the Database system.

The following section will introduce how to perform the functions of PMC Data Server.

5.1 Project Setting

This section describes how to create, save and open (import) project in PMC Data Server. When check [Auto Execute Last Project], the PMC Data Server will be launched and import last project setting automatically after the computer being rebooted.

Proje	ct System
N	ew Project
S	ave Project
C	pen(Import) Project
A	uto Execute Last Project
A	uto Minimize the Window when Start
E	xit

#### 5.1.1 Create New Project

On the [Project] function list, click [New Project] and the [New Project] window will appear. Enter the project Name in the text field; the corresponding storage path will be displayed at the bottom area of the window. After entering project name and project storage path, click "OK" button to create a new project.

	New Project	×		
Project b	/pe Project			
Name:	Name: NewProject			
Path:	C:\Users\JustinLee\Documents	Browse		
	ОК	Cancel		
Create project at: C:\Users\JustinLee\Documents\NewProject\NewProject.dproj				

#### 5.1.2 Save Project

On the [Project] function list, click [Save Project] to save current project settings so that the user can use the same PMC Data Server project next time.

#### 5.1.3 Open(Import) Project

On the [Project] function list, click [Open(Import) Project] and the [Open] window will be shown. Browse through to select the desired project file (\*.dproj) and click on [Open]. PMC Data Server will import the project settings.

#### 5.1.4 Auto Execute Last Project

If user check the **【**Auto Execute Last Project **】**, when user reboot the computer; The computer will automatically launch the PMC Data Server and import the last project setting. If the user has set last project to perform auto Database conversion function; PMC Data Server will also launch the Database auto conversion function for user to continue the original Database conversion operation. Please see <u>chapter 5.6</u> for more detailed about how to perform auto Database conversion.

In addition, there will be a menu when user right-click on the project name with mouse. Each function in the menu will describe in section 5.3, 5.4 and 5.5, respectively.



#### 5.2 System Setting

The user can view the version number of the utility and determine what language to be used in the system. After confirms the language setting, user can get to next step for project setting.

Please Note :

- (1) The system need to be restarted when user changes the language setting. Please make sure the project setting and save it as requires before change the language setting.
- (2) In PMC Data Server, the default language of Database columns will be based on the system language setting of PMC Data Server. That is, if Chinese is selected as system language, the default language of Database columns will be in Chinese, and if English is selected as system language, the default language of Database columns will be in English. User can also see <u>section 5.5.1</u> for more detailed about how to customizing the names of Database columns.

#### 5.3 FTP Server Settings

PMCs send stored power data files to the PMC Data Server regularly through the FTP server. Therefore, it is required for user to setup the built-in FTP server of PMC Data Server for PMC/PMD to send back the power data logger file to the PMC Data Server. Following is the steps.

i. Mouse right-click on the project name and select [FTP Configuration].

The configuration window will be shown as below.

-	FTP Server Configuration	×				
User Accou	User Account Setting					
✓ The F	$\checkmark$ The FTP service will start automatically when the PMC Data Server is launched.					
Path:	C:\FtpRoot Browse	,				
Name:	ADMIN					
Password:	****					
Port:	21 Apply					
	Enable Close					

By default, the system will not launch FTP service automatically. If the user would like to launch the service, please first complete the following settings and click "Apply" button.

- Check or uncheck if the FTP service will start automatically when the PMC Data Server is launched.
- Path : Setup the download path for saving the received power data files that PMC/PMD send to the PMC Data Server.
- Name and Password : Set up the username and the password for the built-in FTP Server of the PMC Data Server. Please make sure the FTP settings on the PMC Web page is also the same as the FTP account settings on the PMC Data Server, so that the PMC/PMD can successfully login and send back power data files to the PMC Data Server.
- Port : Setup the port for the built-in FTP server of the PMC Data Server.
- ii. After the FTP server setting is completed; implement the network connection of the front-end PMC/PMD and the PMC Data Server; click the "Enable" button; the PMC/PMD will start to transfer power data files to the specified FTP server download folder. The specified FTP server download folder will contain an "Info" subfolder and other subfolders for each power meters. The following figure is an example that shows the power data folder structure of the FTP server download path after the PMC/PMD sending back the power data files:



If user want to stop the FTP function or change the FTP setting, please mouse right-click on the project name and select [FTP Configuration], then the configuration window will be shown. Click the "Stop" button to stop the FTP functions or change the FTP parameter setting.

#### 5.4 Alarm Settings

The alarm sending function of PMC Data Server is divided into two parts. The first part is the notification of the change of power meter's setting. When the power meter's setting is changed (power meter be removed or power meter's name be modified), it will send an alarm Email set by the user. The second part is the notification of the change of the PMC/PMD connection status. This function will periodically check the current connection status between PMC/PMD and PMC Data Server according to the time period which user set. When the PMC/PMD connection status be changed (From "Online to Offline" or "Offline to Online"), PMC Data Server will send an alarm Email set by the user.

The following are the steps for alarm setting:

i Mouse right-click on the project name and select [Alarm Setting].



ii By default, the PMC Data Server is disabled the alarm notification service. If user want the alarm notification service be launched automatically when he start the project next time, please remember to check the checkbox of "The Alarm service will start automatically when the PMC Data Server is launched."

tem Alarm Notification Setting		
Alarm Action Setting		
The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is launched.	
Power Meter Alarm Email PMC C	Connection State Alarm Email	
☑ Enable Setting(Power Meters C	hanges Alarm service)	^
SMTP Server Setting		
SMTP Server IP:		
Authentication	L	
Login ID:		
Password:		
General Setting	[]	
Sender Name:		
Sender Email Address:		
1st Receiver Email Address:		
2nd Receiver Email Address:		
3rd Receiver Email Address:		Tost
4th Receiver Email Address:		rest
5th Receiver Email Address:		
Subject:		
<b>-</b>		¥
	Enable	Close

iii If user want to enable the notification service of "Power Meter Alarm Email", please click the "Power Meters Alarm Email" tab, and check the checkbox of "Enable Setting(Power Meters Changes Alarm service)", and refer to <u>section 5.4.1</u> for more detailed information of the Power Meter Alarm Setting.

The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is launched.	
✓ Enable Setting(Power Meters C	hanges Alarm service)	^
SMTP Server Setting		
SMTP Server IP:		
Authentication		
Login ID:		
Password:		
General Setting		
Sender Name:		
Sender Email Address:		
1st Receiver Email Address:		
2nd Receiver Email Address:		
3rd Receiver Email Address:		
4th Receiver Email Address:		Test
5th Receiver Email Address:		
o		
Subject:		

iv If user want to enable the notification service of "PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Email", please click the "PMC Connection State Alarm Email" tab, and check the checkbox of "Enable Setting(PMC Connection State Alarm service)", and refer to section <u>5.4.2</u> for more detailed information of the PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting.

System Alarm Notification Setting			×
Alarm Action Setting The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is launched.		
Power Meter Alarm Email PMC C	Connection State Alarm Email	,	^
Interval to check PMC connection	state change: 300 second		
☑ Enable Setting(PMC Connection	State Alarm service)		
SMTP Server Setting			
SMTP Server IP:			
Authentication			
Login ID:			
Password:			
General Setting			
Sender Name:			
Sender Email Address:			
1st Receiver Email Address:			
2nd Receiver Email Address:			
3rd Receiver Email Address:		<b>Tb</b>	
4th Receiver Email Address:		Test	~
	Enable	Close	

v After complete step i~iv and have verified the Network setting of PMC/PMD and PMC Data Server, please click "Enable" button to save the setting and enable the alarm notification service,

System Alarm Notification Setting		×
Alarm Action Setting		
The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is launched.	
Power Meter Alarm Email PMC C	Connection State Alarm Email	
☑ Enable Setting(Power Meters C	hanges Alarm service)	^
SMTP Server Setting		
SMTP Server IP:		
Authentication		
Login ID:		
Password:		
General Setting		
Sender Name:		
Sender Email Address:		
1st Receiver Email Address:		
2nd Receiver Email Address:		
3rd Receiver Email Address:	Test	
4th Receiver Email Address:	lest	
5th Receiver Email Address:		
Subject:		
		~
	Enable	se

vi If user want to disable the alarm notification service or modify the parameters setting of the service , please click the "Stop" button. The alarm notification service will be stopped immediately.

system Alarm Notification Setting		×
Alarm Action Setting		
The Alarm service will start automatically where the automatical is a service will start automatically where the service is a service will be a service will start automatically where the service will start automatically where the service will be a service will	nen the PMC Data Server is launched.	
Power Meter Alarm Email PMC Con	nection State Alarm Email	
Enable Setting(Power Meters Cha	nges Alarm service)	^
SMTP Server Setting		
SMTP Server IP: SI	ntp.icpdas.com	
Authentication		
Login ID:		
Password:		
General Setting		
Sender Name:		
Sender Email Address: Se	ender@icpdas.com	
1st Receiver Email Address: R	eceiver@icpdas.com	
2nd Receiver Email Address:		
3rd Receiver Email Address:		Tost
4th Receiver Email Address:		TEST
5th Receiver Email Address:		
Subject:		
- · · · F		~
		-
	Stop	Close

#### 5.4.1 Power Meter Alarm Setting

When the power meter's setting is changed (power meter be removed or power meter's name be modified), user can enable the alarm notification service to send an alarm Email to the related person for the follow-up processing. The following are the steps for the Power Meter alarm setting :

Click the "Power Meter Alarm Email" tab on [System Alarm Notification Setting] page, and get into the "Power Meter Alarm Setting" page.

System Alarm Notification Setting			×
Alarm Action Setting			
The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is launched.		
Power Meter Alarm Email PMC C	Connection State Alarm Email		
✓ Enable Setting(Power Meters C	changes Alarm service)		^
SMTP Server Setting			
SMTP Server IP:			
Authentication			
Login ID:			
Password:			
General Setting			
Sender Name:			
Sender Email Address:			
1st Receiver Email Address:			
2nd Receiver Email Address:			
3rd Receiver Email Address:		Tost	
4th Receiver Email Address:		rest	
5th Receiver Email Address:			
Subject:			
- · ·	[		~
	Enable	Close	

- ii. If user want to enable the service, please check the checkbox of "Enable Setting(Power Meters Changes Alarm service)" first and complete the following settings.
  - SMTP Server IP : In the "SMTP Server" field, enter the IP or the domain name of the SMTP server.
  - ID and Password : If the SMTP server requires account and password validation, please select the "Authentication" checkbox and then enter the SMTP server login ID in the "Login ID" field, and enter the SMTP server password in the "Password" field.

- Sender and Receiver's email address : Enter the sender's email address in the "Sender Email Address" field and enter at least one receiver's email address. To verify whether the email setting is correct or not, user can click the "Test" button, then the system will send a test Email to the receivers' email address for verification.
- Subject : Enter the email subject in the "Subject" field.
- Content : Enter the email content in the "Content" field.

System Alarm Notification Setting			Х
Alarm Action Setting			
The Alarm service will start autor	matically when the PMC Data Server is launched.		
Power Meter Alarm Email	PMC Connection State Alarm Email		
Lo	gin ID:	^	
Pas	sword:		
General Setting			
Sender	Name:		
Sender Email Ac	ddress:		
1st Receiver Email Ac	ddress:		
2nd Receiver Email Ac	ddress:		
3rd Receiver Email Ac	ddress:		
4th Receiver Email Ac	ddress:	Test	
5th Receiver Email Ar	ddress:		
Current Curren	whiest		
50			
Co	ontent:		
		~	
	Enable	Close	1
		J [	

#### 5.4.2 PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting

User can set the time interval to periodically check the connection status between PMC/PMD and PMC Data Server. When the PMC/PMD connection status be changed (From "Online to Offline" or "Offline to Online"), PMC Data Server will send an alarm notification Email to the related person for the follow-up processing. The following are the steps for the PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting :

 Click the "PMC Connection State Alarm Email" tab on [System Alarm Notification Setting] page, and get into the "PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting" page.

The Alarm service will start automatically	when the PMC Data Server is I	aunched.		
Deven Materia Alerea Errell DMC (	Connection State Alarm Email			
Power Meter Alarm Email	Connection State Alarm Email			•
Interval to check PMC connection	state change:			
	300 second			
C Enable Setting (DMC Connection	State Alarm convice)			
	i State Alarni Service)			
SMTP Server Setting				
SMTP Server IP:				
Authentication				
Login ID:				
Password:				
General Setting				
Sender Name:				
Sender Email Address:				
1st Receiver Email Address:				
2nd Receiver Email Address:				
3rd Receiver Email Address:				
4th Receiver Email Address			Test	
401 Receiver Email Address:				¥

ii. After complete the setting of "Interval to check the PMC connection state change", the PMC Data Server will periodically check the connection status between PMC/PMD and PMC Data Server according to the time period entered by user. If the PMC/PMD connection status is changed (From "Online to Offline" or "Offline to Online"), a pop-up warning window will be shown. If user enable the alarm notification Email sending function, then PMC Data Server will send an alarm Email to the related person for the follow-up processing.

Please Note : The default value of "Interval to check the PMC connection state change" is 300 seconds, and the minimum value is 60 seconds.

iii. If user want to enable the service, please check the checkbox of "Enable Setting(PMC Connection State Alarm service)" first and complete the settings. About the detail information of the setting, please refer to <u>section 5.4.1 Power Meter Alarm Setting</u>.

#### 5.5 Data Table Editing and Binding

PMC Data Server takes the CT(or phase) of power meter as the basic unit.

After user complete the setting of CT(or phase) of the power meter as this section, the PMC Data Server will extract the content of the power data files sent back by the PMC for Database conversion. The detail description of the editing of the Data Table and the binding of Data Table and CT(or phase) of the power meter is as below.



#### 5.5.1 Data Table Editing

It is used to define which power data will be selected to import into the Database system, and also the definition of the Database Column. Mouse right-click on the project name and select **[** Table Edit **]**, then the Table Edit window will be shown as below. Input the name of the Data Table in the "Table Name" field, and select the data items which will be used in the Database import operation. After complete all setting, clicking "Add" button to add the Data Table in the system. User can modify the Data Table setting which already exists by clicking "Modify" button; Clicking "Delete" button will delete the Data Table which user define before.



User can customize the content of the Database column for the data table as requires. For example, both "V" and "I" columns are the default Database column of the Data Table. They can be renamed as "Demo\_V" and "Demo\_I" as following, so the data from the CT (or phase) of the power meter will be converted into the Database with this new customized Database column.



#### 5.5.2 Data Table Binding

After complete the setting of "5.5.1 Data Table Editing", now user have to setup the binding relation between the Data Table and its data source (The CT or phase of the power meter). Mouse right-click on the project name and select [Table Binding] then a tree architecture list of the CT(or phase) of power meter of PMC will be shown as below. User can check or uncheck the checkboxes which is in the front of each CT(or phase) to add or remove the CT(or phase) from the binding list of the Data Table. Each CT(or phase) can be bound to multiple Data Tables. The CT(or phase) binding list is the data source of the Data Table. When PMC Data Server start the Database conversion operation, the system will perform the power data files processing according to the definition of the CT(or phase) which is added into the binding list or not. After complete the setting, the Database conversion function will be performed and store data into the Database system regularly.

If the user would like to remove the specified CT(or phase) from the binding list, just uncheck the checkboxes of the CT(or phase). Please remember to click "Apply binding and change" button after

#### completing all setting.

Project Manage PMC Connection State	🙀 Table Binding			×
SewProject	Table Name Table1			
<ul> <li>RewProject</li> <li>Table1</li> <li>PM-3133_phaseA</li> <li>PM-3133_phaseB</li> <li>PM-3133_phaseC</li> <li>PM-3133_Total</li> <li>Table2</li> <li>Table3</li> </ul>	Table Name         Table1           New Devices         New Project           Image: PM-5151 (192.168.100.153)         Image: PM-3133           Image: PM-3133         PM-3134           Image: PM-3134         PM-3134           Image: PM-3134         PM-3134           Image: PM-3134         PM-3134           Image: PM-3134         PM-3134           Image: PM-3144         PM-3144           Image: PM-3124         PM-3144           Image: PM-3144	Old Devices PM-3133_phaseA PM-3133_phaseB PM-3133_phaseB PM-3133_phaseC PM-3133_Total PM-4324(Submeter1)_phaseA PM-4324(Submeter1)_phaseA PM-4324(Submeter1)_phaseA PM-4324(Submeter2)_phaseA PM-4324(Submeter2)_phaseA PM-4324(Submeter2)_phaseA		^ ^
	⊶ PM-4324(Submeter2)_phaseC ⊶ PM-4324(Submeter2)_Total	PM-4324(Submeter2)_phaseC PM-4324(Submeter2)_Total		
	< PM-4324(Submeter3) nhaseA	PM-4324(Submeter3) nhaseA		<i>`</i>
		Apply binding and chang	e Clo	se

Please note: When there are changes on Power Meters, tree architecture list of the CT(or phase) of power meter of PMC will be colored : Gray represents devices removed; Red represents nickname changed; Blue represents new devices.

#### 5.6 Database Settings and Conversion

The Database convert function supports 4 types of Database: MS Access, MS SQL, MySQL(MariaDB) and OracleDB. The user could freely define the ways to connect to the Database. In addition, PMC Data Server also provides automatic Database conversion function to automatically convert the content of the power data files into the specific Database system regularly.

#### 5.6.1 Create Database Connection Setting

The user interface of the Database connection setting is shown as follow. Follow the steps below to set up it.

Database Connec	tion Setting			
Database type:	None ~		Database name:	
Login name:	None MS Access		Login password:	
IP:	MySQL/MariaDB OracleDB			🗹 Use localhost
Port number:			Test Connection	Save Setting

- The Database convert function supports 4 types of Database.
   Select the Database type, the corresponding setting textboxes for the Database type will be shown for user to fill in.
- PMC Data Server provides connection testing function for MS SQL, MySQL(MariaDB) and Oracle Database. For MS Access connection setting, it doesn't require connection testing, the user only needs to make sure if the storage path is available or not.

#### 5.6.2 Save Database Connection Setting

After complete the settings of "Database Connection Setting", the user could test the connection by clicking "Test Connection" button before the normal operation. User could also skip the test step and save the connection setting directly to the "Connection List" by clicking "Save Setting" button.

The Database connection settings list will be showed as below:

Connection List					
DB Туре	DB Name	Login Name	Login	IP	Port
MS SQL	TestDB	sa	*****	192.168.100.131	1433
MySQL/MariaDB	root	root	*****	192.168.100.128	3307

#### 5.6.3 Modify and Delete Database Connection Setting

Double click the database connection setting on the "Connection List", the PMC Data Server will bring out the saved setting and the setting information will be showed on the "Database Connection Setting" automatically. User can modify the setting to fit their requirements. After the modification is completed, click "Save Setting" button to save the settings back to the "Connection List".

In addition, user can also delete the previous saved database connection setting on the "Connection List" by mouse right-clicking on the selected database connection setting, and select "Delete".



#### 5.6.4 Database Conversion

There are 2 ways to perform the database conversion function as "Auto Conversion" and "Manual Conversion". Before user performs the database convert function, please make sure if the Database connection setting to the database works properly.

#### Auto Conversion

Enable this function will let PMC Data Server automatically transferred the power data files of PMC into the Database system based on the format setting of "<u>5.5 Data Table</u> Editing and Binding". The process to perform "Auto Conversion" function is as follows:

In the "Perform auto conversion" tab, select a database connection from the "Database" drop down list; Select the start time for the operation and at least one Data table in the "Table" checkbox list. After completing the setting, click "Start" button to start database conversion function. When this function is executed, all operations on the user interface will be locked to prevent possible error and the number of the processing files will be shows on the user interface; "Start" button will become "Stop" button. When the user clicks "Detailed Info." button, the detailed information of the power data files which have been imported to the database will be showed on the other dialog.

Perform auto conver	rsion Perfo	rm man	ual conversion		
Database:	[MsSqlServ	er][Tes	stDB][localhost]		~
Start date :	2014年11月	13日			
Table:	Table1 Table2 Table3				
Processing files:	9		Detailed Info.		Stop
<b>G</b>					×
Date / Time	More				^
2016/04/06 17:19:02	C:\Us	ge are\luctiu	nl.ee\Deskton\TEstEmail\T1B	031ED1500004E_2[3133]1\2010	6-04-01 csv
2016/04/06 17:19:13	C:\Us	ers\Justin	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E 2[3133]1\201	6-03-29.csv
2016/04/06 17:20:08	C:\Us	ers\Justir	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E_2[3133]1\2010	6-04-02.csv
2016/04/06 17:20:55	C:\Us	ers\Justir	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E_2[3133]1\201	6-03-30.csv
2016/04/06 17:20:55	C:\Us	ers\Justir	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E_2[3133]1\201	6-03-31.csv
2016/04/06 17:20:56	C:\Us	ers\Justir	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E_2[3133]1\201	6-04-01.csv
2016/04/06 17:20:56	C:\Us	ers\Justir	nLee\Desktop\TEstEmail\T1B	931ED1500004E_2[3133]1\201	6-04-02.csv 🗸
9/9					Close

If the user would like to perform any operation immediately, the user can stop the convert function by clicking "Stop" button. The operations on the user interface will go back to normal again.

After the power data is converted and saved in the database, the database structure will be similar to that shown below:



Manual Conversion

In the "Perform manual conversion" tab, select a database connection from the "Database" drop down list, identify the start time and end time of the Database conversion operation and then click on "Start" button to perform the database conversion operation with the setting which user define manually.

Perform auto conve	rsion Perform manual conversion	
Database:		¥
Start date :	2014年11月25日	
End date :	2014年11月25日	
		Start

The status of the manual conversion operation will be displayed on the message list under the user interface.

If MS Access is selected as the destination database, the MS Access (\*.mdb) file will be named as below.

"DatabaseName\_ProjectName\_TableName\_GenerationTime .mdb".

Following is an example of MS Access file for reference:

demoDB_demoProject_Table1_20141203164004.md					
Database name	Project name	Table name	Generation time		

If MS SQL or MySQL(MariaDB) is selected as the destination database, all names of the tables in the database will be consistent as the setting in <u>5.5.1"Data Table Editing</u>".

#### 5.7 PMC/PMD Connection State

When user opens the project, the PMC Data Server will periodically check the connection status between PMC Data Sever and the PMC/PMD concentrators which are included in the project. User can visit the "Function Operation Area" of PMC Data Server, and directly click the tab of "PMC Connection State" to review the connection status. If user enable the function of alarm notification Email sending, then PMC Data Server will send an alarm Email to the related person when it find the connection status is changed. About the setting of alarm notification Email sending, please refer to <u>5.4.2 PMC/PMD Connection State Alarm Setting</u> for detail.

Project         System           roject         Manage         PMC Connection State           PMC Connection State         PMC-5151 (192.168.100.153)           PMC-5151 (192.168.100.38)         PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	Database Connect Database type: Logn name: IP: Port number: Connection List DB Type	tion Setting		Da Lo Tes	atabase name: ogin password: st Connection	Use localhost
PMC Connection State PMC Connection State PMC-5151 (192.168.100.153) PMC-5151 (192.168.100.38) PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	Database Connec Database type: Login name: IP: Port number: Connection List DB Type	None		Da Lo Tes	atabase name: ogin password: st Connection	Use localhost
● PMC Connection State ● PMC-5151 (192.168.100.153) ● PMC-5151 (192.168.100.38) ● PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	Database type: Login name: IP: Port number: Connection List DB Type	None C	•	Da Lo Tes	atabase name: ogin password: st Connection	Use localhost
● PMC-5151 (192.168.100.153) ● PMC-5151 (192.168.100.38) ● PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	Login name: IP: Port number: Connection List DB Type		•	Lo	ogin password: st Connection	Use localhost
● PMC-5151 (192.168.100.38) ● PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	IP: Port number: Connection List DB Type			Tes	st Connection	Use localhos
└ _ PMC-5231(新店) (192.168.100.251)	Port number: Connection List DB Type			Tes	st Connection	Save Setting
	Port number: Connection List DB Type	DR Marra		Tes	st Connection	Save Setting
	Connection List	DB Name				
	DB Type	DD Name				
2		DB Name	Login Name	Login	IÞ	Port
	Convert Database					
	Perform auto cor	nversion Perform m	anual conversion			
	Databas	e:				
	Chart date	2017年11日 1C	,			
	Start uate	8: 2017年11月 1E				
	140					
						Start
ate / Time Message						

- Complete the setting of "FTP Server Settings" of PMC Data Server and "FTP Upload Setting" of PMC/PMD first. About the "FTP Server Settings" of PMC Data Server, please refer to <u>5.3 FTP Server Settings</u> for detail. About "FTP Upload Setting" of PMC/PMD, please refer to 8.3 FTP Upload Setting of PMC/PMD User Manual.
- ii After complete all setting, visit the "Function Operation Area" of PMC Data Server, click the tab of "PMC Connection State", then PMC Data Server will periodically check and display the connection status in the "Function Operation Area".
- iii The page of PMC/PMD connection status is shown as below:



PMC Data Server will periodically update the connection status with the PMC/PMD concentrators which are included in the project every 5 seconds. The Green light in front of the PMC/PMD node indicates that the PMC/PMD is in Online status, and the red light in front of the PMC/PMD node indicates that the PMC/PMD is in Offline status currently.